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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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To the Members of PNC Khajuraho Highways Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the Ind AS Financial Statements of PNC Khajuraho Highways Private
Limited (the “company”), which comprises of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the
statement of Profit and Loss including statement of Other Comprehensive Income, and

statement of cash flows and Statement of changes in Equity for the year then ended, and
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2024, and the statement of Profit and Loss including Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, and Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended, and summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for The Audit of Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other

information comprises the Director’s report but does not include the Financial Sta
and our auditor’s report thereon.
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Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibility of Management for Financial Statements

The company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section of 134(5)
of the companies’ act, 2013 with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the
company’s ability to continue as going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for Audit of Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial
Statements.

We give in “Annexure A” a detailed description of Auditor’s responsibilities for
Financial Statements.




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the companies (auditor’s report) rules,2020 (“the order”)issued by the
central Government of India in terms of the sub section (11) of the section 143 of the
act, we give in the Annexure B, a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and
4 of the order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet and the statement of Profit and Loss including statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, and statement of cash flows and Statement of changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial Statements summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information dealt with in this
report are in agreement with the books of accounts.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with of the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in Annexure C.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its Ind AS financial statements to the Ind AS financial statements, if any.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  This clause is omitted.




Vi.

vii.

1)

2)

3)

The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested ( either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities(“Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company(“ultimate beneficiary”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries;

The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds have been
received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities(“Funding Parties”) with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the company(“ultimate beneficiary”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries; and

Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances; nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub clause (1) and (2)
contain any material mis-statement.

The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

As per information and explanations given and based on our examination, which
include test checks ,the company has used accounting software for maintaining its
books of account which has a feature of recording audit trial (edit log) facility and
the same has operated throughout the year for all the transactions recorded in the
software .Further ,during the course of our audit we did not come across any
instance of audit trial feature being tampered with ,and the audit trial has been
preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For RMA & Associates LLP

Partner

M.No.405219
Date:22-05-2024

Place of Signature: Agra



Annexure A to the Independent auditor’s report on even date on the financial statements
of PNC Khajuraho Highways Private Limited for the year ended March 31, 2024

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud -or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

For RMA & Associates LLP

M.No.405219
Date: 22-05-2024
Place of Signature: Agra



Annexure B to the independent auditor’s report on even date on the financial statements
PNC Khajuraho Highways Private Limited for the year ended March 31, 2024

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report -on Other Legal & Regulatory
Requirement’ of our report of even date to the financial statements of the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2024:

1.

a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars, including Quantitative details and situation of
Property, plant and equipment.

b. According to the information and explanation given to us, the
Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars
of Intangible assets.

a) All Property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the
management at a regular interval of time (normally once a year). No
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of
immovable properties (other than immovable properties where the
company is the lessee and Lhe lease agreement are duly executed in favor
of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statement are held in the name of
the Company.

c) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment
(including right to use assets) or Intangible assets or both during the year,

d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, No proceedings
have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company
as at March 31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made there under.

2. There is no inventory in the company thus clause 3 (ii) (a) and (ii) (b) are not
applicable.

3. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Liability partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained
under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iii) (a) to (f) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security.




5. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives
issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any
other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit)
Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the company pursuant
to the Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of the cost records
under section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion that prima facie,
the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.

b)

10.

According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, and records, the Company has been generally
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund,
Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs,
Duty of Excise, Value added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with the
appropriate authorities and there are no arrears of outstanding statutory dues on
the last day of the financial year concerned (31.03.2024) for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no tax dues
outstanding on account of dispute.

No transactions have been recorded in the books of account have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

The company is not a declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or other lender;

The term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were
obtained.

The funds raised on short term basis have not been utilized for long term
purposes.

The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on
account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures.

The company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of
securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

Based on the audit procedures performed and information and
explanations given to us by the management, the company has not raised
moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) term loans Hence the provisions of clause 3(x) (a) of the
Order are not applicable to the company.




11.

12.

13.

14,

15,

16.

17.

18.

19.

b. Based on the audit procedure performed and information and
explanations given to us by the management, the company has not made
any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year.
Hence the provisions of clause 3(x) (b) of the Order are not applicable to
the company.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and
explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company
or on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported
during the year. Hence the provisions of clause 3(xi) of the Order are not
applicable to the company.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Hence this clause 3 (xii) of the order are not
applicable on it to the company.

In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed
in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

a) The company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

b) The reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit were considered
by the statutory auditor.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.

In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, The Company has no incurred cash
losses in the current financial year and no cash losses have been incurred in the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, the auditor’s knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans, the auditor is of the opinion that no material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and whemm
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.




20. The Company has complied with the provisions of the Section 135 of the
Companies Act 2013 and there is no unspent amount on CSR activity.

21. These are not a consolidated financials. Thus, this clause is not applicable.

For RMA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 000978N/N500062

M.No.405219
Date:22-05-2024
Place of Signature: Agra



“Annexure C” to the Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date on the financial
statements of PNC Khajuraho Highways Private Limited for the year ended March 31,
2024.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (l) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of PNC KHAJURAHO
HIGHWAYS PRIVATE LIMITED as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls.

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on these responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial contr
over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding lhe reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024.

For RMA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 000978N/N500062

Partner

M.No.405219

Date: 22-05-2024

Place of Signature: Agra
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PNC Khajuraho Highways Private Limited
CIN :U45500DL2017PTC316427
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

(Y in Lakhs)
Particulars Notes Ay RS
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
(1)  Non Current Assets 2 ,
(a) Property, Plant & Equipments 2 3.21 3.24
(b) Financial Assets
(i)  Service Concession Receivable 3 50,461.10 56,819.38
(c) Other Non Current Assets 4 4,371.70 6,173.57
Sub Total (Non Current Assets) 54,836.01 62,996.19
(2)  Current Assets
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 5 3,561.73 1,280.06
(i) Trade Receivables 6 2,045.41 929.17
(ili) Cash and Cash Equivalents 7.1 32.28 52.53
(iv) Other Bank Balanecs 7.1 2,345.00 2,150.00
(b} Other Current Assets 8 86.32 48.35
Sub Total (Current Assets) 8,070.74 4,460.10
Total Assets 62,906.75 67,456.29
(1) EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity Share Capital 9 3,930.00 3,930.00
(b) Other Equity 10 2,982.79 2,735.29
Sub Total (Equity) 6,912.79 6,665.29
(2) LIABILITIES
Non - Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 11 48,957 a5 53,672.95
(i)  Financial Liabilities 12 mn1? 514N
(b} Provisione 13 14,72 18.%9
Sub Total (Non Current Liabilities) 49,037.79 53,737.74
. (3)  Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i)  Borrowings 14 4,720.00 4,720.00
(i) Trade Payables 15 2,201.17 2,292.30
(ili) Other Financial Liabilities 16 25.40 37.22
(b) Other Current Liabilities 17 5.86 1.14
(c) Provisions 18 3.73 2.60
Sub Total (Current Liabilities) 6,956.17 7,053.27
Total Equity & Liabilities 62,906.75 67,456.29

The accompanying notes an form integral part of the these financial statements
In terms of our report of even date attached

For RMA & Associates LLP

- Partner
M.No.-405219

Date: 22/05/2024
Place: Agra

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
PNC Khajuraho Highways Private Limited

—

=ity
Talluri Raghupati Rao
Managing Director
DIN- 01207205

Asfiwani Rawat
Director
DIN- 02941309

L
q‘

* Sonal Sharma
id] Officer Company Secretary




PNC Khajuraho Highways Private Limited
CIN :U45500DL2017PTC316427 .
Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended March 31, 2024

(% in Lakhs)
Particilars T~ Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
I |Revenue from Operations 19 6,905.64 7,290.88
Il |Other Income - 20 358.36 160.81
i Total Income ( I+l1 ) 7,264.00 7,451.70
IV |Expenses :
Employee Benefit Expenses 21 162.78 178.79
Finance Cost 22 4,092.97 4,061.06
Depreciation & Amortization 2 0.66 0.54
Other Expenses 23 2,011.35 1,791.93
Total Expenses (IV) 6,267.75 6,032.31
V |Profit/(Loss) before tax (I11-1V) 996.25 1,419.39
VI |Tax Expense :
Current Tax 1,000.28 786.08
Tax for Earlier Years ' (251.53) 12.96
Deferred Tax - -
VIl |Profit/ (Loss) for the period (V- VI ) 247.50 620.34
VIli|Other Comprehensive Income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
(i) Income Tax relating to above items - B
IX |Total Comprehensive Income for the period { VIi + VIII) 247.50 620.34
Earning per Equity Share
Basic & Diluted (in Rs) 24 0.63 1.58

The accompanying notes an form integral part of the these financial statements
In terms of our report of even date attached

For RMA & Associates LLP

CA Rajiv Bajpa
Partner
M.No.-405219

Date: 22/05/2024
Place: Agra

Chief Findnc

—

=74
Talluri Raghupati Rao
Managing Director

DIN- 01207205

Myldul Garg

e

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
PNC Khajuraho Highways Private Limited

AshWani Rawat
Director
DIN- 02941309

™

Sonal Sharma

Officer Company Secretary




PNC Khajuraho Highways Private Limited
CIN :U45500DL2017PTC316427

Statement of Changes In Equity For The Year Ended March 31, 2024

A. Equity Share Capital (% in Lakhs)
As at Changes during the As at
April 01, 2023 year March 31, 2024
3,930.00 - 3,930.00
As at Changes during the As at
April 01, 2022 year __ March 31,2023
3,154.00 776.00 3,930.00
B. Other Equity
(% in Lakhs)
Particulars : Referves & Surplus
: Retained earnings Total
Balance as at April 1, 2023 2,735.29 2,735.29
Profit for the year 247.50 247.50
Other Comprehensive Income for the period - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 247.50 247.50
Balance as at March 31, 2024 2,982.79 2,982.79
{Tin Lakhs)
PartichEre : Refer\res & Surplus
Retained earnings Total
Balance as at April 1, 2022 2,114.95 2,114.95
Profil for the year 620.34 | 620.34
Other Camprehensive Inrame for the period . -
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 620.34 620.34
Balance as at March 31, 2023 2,735.29 2,735.29

The accompanying notes an form integral part of the these financial statements

In terms of our report of even date attached

7o

=
CA Rdjiv Bajpai
Partner

M.No.-405219

Date: 22/05/2024
Place: Agra

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
PNC Khajuraho Highways Private Limited

Aﬁfﬂlawﬂ

Talluri Raghupati Rao
Managing Director Director
DIN- 01207205 DIN- 02941309

Qtgm\‘jjt.:;gal charma.

(] harma
Chief Officer Company Secretary




PNC Khajuraho Highways Private Limited
CIN :U45500DL2017PTC316427
Statement of Cash Flow for the Year ended March 31, 2024

(X in Lakhs)
Year Ended Year Ended
Satticular I March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A. | Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit /(Loss) before Tax & after exceptional items 996.25 1,419.39
Adjustment for:
Add/(Less):
Finance Cost 4,092.97 4,061.06
Interest income (185.47) (108.01)
(Gain)/loss on Redemption of Mutual Funds (130.25) (33.14)
(Gain)/loss on Fair Valuation of Mutual Funds (42.64) (19.66)
Depreciation & Amortization 0.66 0.54
Operating Profit / (Loss) before Working Capital Changes 4,731.51 5,320.17
Adjustment fo Changes in Working Capital
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables (91.13) (1,206.24)
Increase/(Decrease) in Other current Liabilities 4.72 (1.42)
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Non Current financial liabilities 18.73 (136.01)
Increase/{Decrease) in Current Financial Liablities (11.82) -
Increse/(Decrease) in Non current Financial Assets 6,358.27 5,408.30
Increse/(Decrease) in current trade recievables (1,116.24) (402.66)
Increse/(Decrease) in Non current Provisian 133 13.39
Increse/(Decrease} in Current Provision 113 788.68
Increase/(Decrease) in Non Current assets 1,8G5.56 1,615.68
Increase/{Decrease) in Inventories - 0.08
Increase/{Decrease) in Current assets (37.97) (11.72)
Increase/(Decrease) in uther Bank Balances (195.00) (950.00)
Lash Generated from/(used) trom Operating Actlvitles 11,529.09 10,438.25
Direct Taxes Paid ' (812.44) 799.04
Cash (used in )/ from Operating Activities Before Extraordinary Items (A) 10,716.66 9,639.21
B. | Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Interest income 185.47 108.01
Purchase of Investment (8,191.45) (5,935.48)
Sale of Investment 6,082.66 4,779.17
Purchase of Fixed Asset (0.62) (3.78)
Net Cash ( used in) / From Investing Activities (B) (1,923.94) {1,052.08)
C. | Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceed of Term Loan - 150.00
Repayment of Term Loan (4,720.00) (4,720.05)
Finance Cost (4,092.97) (4,061.06)
Net Cash ( used in) / from Financing Activities (C) {8,812.97) (8,631.11)
Net Cash Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (20.25) (43.98)
Cash & Cash Equivalents in Beginning 52.53 96.51
Cash & Cash Equivalents as at the End 32.28 52.53

The accompanying notes an form integral part of the these financial statements
In terms of our report of even date attached
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PNC Khajuraho Highways Private Limited
CIN: U45500DL2017PTC316427

1. Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements For the Year Ended on March 31, 2024

Company Information

PNC Khajuraho Highways Private Limited The Company has been awarded Four Laning of Jhansi-Khajuraho section (PKG-Il) of NH-
75/76 from Design chainage Km 76.3 (existing chainage 82.100) near village Chhatipahari to design chainage km 161.79 existing
chainage km 57.9 near Bamitha town in the state of UP/MP under NHDP (Phase-IIl) on Hybrid Annuity Mode.

1. Basis of Preparation
The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with Indian accounting standards {Ind AS) notified

under sec 133 of the companies act 2013 (the Act) read with Companies (Indian accounting standard) Rules, 2015 and other
relevant provision of the Act and rules framed thereunder.

The Financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain financial assets & Liabilities measured at
fair value. ) )

The financial statements are presented in Indian rupees (INR) with value rounded off to the nearest lakhs with two decimals,
thereof, except otherwise indicated.

2. Significant Accounting Policies Adopted by Company in Preparation of Financial Statements

2.1 Proparty, pvlant and tquipment

Subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant and equipment are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing
costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. The carrying
amount of the replace part accounted for as a separate asset previously is derecognized. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria
are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance cost are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when incurred. The present
value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the

recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on written down value basis as per the rate derived on the basis of
useful life and method prescribed under schedule-Il of the companies Act, 2013.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
The carrying amounts of other non-financial assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of

impairment based on internal /external factors. An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
value. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to the present value using a per-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessment of the time value of money and risks specific to the assets. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit
and loss in the year in which an agsatlis identified as impaired. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying
amount of the asset over it seful life. The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting periods is.reversed by
crediting to the statement of itand Iosﬂ here has been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount.




2.2 Service Concession Agreements

The Company constructs & upgrades infrastructure (construction or upgrade services) used to provide a public service and
operates and maintains that infrastructure (operation services) for a specified period of time.

These arrangements may include Infrastructure used in a public-to-private service concession arrangement for its entire useful
life. Under Appendix C to Ind AS 115 — Service Concession Arrangements, these arrangements are accounted for based on the
nature of the consideration. The Financial asset model is used to the extent that the operator has an unconditiona! contractual
right to receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction services. If the company
performs more than one service (i.e. construction or upgrade services and operation services) under a single contract or
arrangement, consideration received or receivable is allocated by reference to the relative fair values of the services delivered,
when the amounts are separately identifiable.

In the financial asset model, the amount due from the grantor meets the identification of the receivable which is measured at fair
value. It is subsequently measured at amortized cost. The amount initially recognized plus cumulative jnterest on that amount is
calculated using the effective interest method. Any asset carried under concession agreements is derecognized on disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its future use or disposal or when contractual right to the financial assets

expires.

Revenue related to SCA:
Revenue related to construction under a service roncession arrangement is recognized based on the stage of complation of the

work performed.

2.3 Revenue Recoghilion
Revenue is recognized to the extent that It Is probable that the economic benefits will flow and the revenue can be reliably

measured. Revenue Is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivahle, taking inta arconnt cantractually
defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government except to the extent stated
otherwise.

The company has recognized Finance Income on the outstanding balance of trade receivables as a part of revenue from
operations.

2.4 Interest Income
For all debt instruments measured either at amortized cost or at'fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income
is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). Interest income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

2.5 Taxes on Income

Current Tax
The income tax expenses or credit for the period is the tax payable only current period’s taxable income based on the applicable

income tax rate adjusted by changes and deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
loses. The current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and

liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial statements at the reporting date. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred tax assets is realized or the deferred tax liabilities is settled.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized
deferred tax assets are re-assessed h reporting date and,are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that




Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in

equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same takable entity and the same taxation authority.

Minimum alternative tax (MAT) credit is recognized as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence
that the company bill pay normal income tax during the specified period. such asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
the carrying amount of MAT credit asset is written down to the extend there is no longer the convincing evidence to the effect
that the company bill pay normal income tax during the specified period .

2.6 Foreign Currency Transactions
The company’s financial statements are presented in INR which is also the company’s functional currency. Foreign currency

transactions are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency. Using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
At each balance sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing exchange rate. Exchange differences
that arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting at each balance sheet date or the company’s monetary items at the
closing rate are recognized as income or expenses in the period in which they arise. Non-monetary items which are carried at
historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of transaction.

2.7 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and other short term highly liquid investments with an original

maturity of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. : 3

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above.
Net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the company’s cash management.

2.8 Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after

deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
potential equity shares except when the results would be antidilutive.

2.9 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is

probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement‘of profit and loss.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is

recognized as a finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. If it is no longer probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits.will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
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recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability
also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably.
information on contingent liabilities is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of

resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from the past events and whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not within the control of the company. Contingent assets are not
recognized but are disclosed in the financial statements.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets are reviewed at each reporting date.

2.10 Sales/ value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the tax
paid is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable- When receivables
and payables are stated with the amount of tax included. The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation
authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

)

2.11 Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial

period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are
éxpensed in the period In which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds. Dorrowing cost also includes exchange differences Lo Lhe extent regarded as an adjustment to the

borrowing costs.

2.12 Employee Benefits
Provident Fund: The contribution to provident fund is in the nature of defined contribution plan. The Company makes

contribution to statutory provident fund in accordance with the Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act,
1952.The contribution paid or payable is recognized as an expense in the period in which services are rendered.

Gratuity (Funded): Gratuity is in the nature of defined benefit plan. The cost is determined using the projected unit credit method
with actuarial valuation being carried at cash at each Balance Sheet date by an independent actuary. The retirement benefits
obligation recognized in the Balance Sheet represent the present value of defined benefit obligation as adjusted for recognized
past service cost Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in full in the other comprehensive income for the period in which they

occur.

) .
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months rendering services are classified as short term employee benefits.
Benefits such as salaries, wages, short-term compensated absences, performance incentives etc., and the expected cost of bonus,
ex-gratia are recognized during the period in which the employee renders related service.

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognized as an expense when employees have rendered the
service entitling them to the contribution.

2.13 Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of

another entity.

Financials Asset

Initial Recognition and Measurement
Financial assets are recognized when the company b
determines the classification of its financial asse
transaction costs that are directly attributable
value through profit or loss.




Subsequent Measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories;

(i) Financial Asset at amortized cost
(ii)Financial Asset at Fair Value through OCI (FVTOCI)
(ii)Financial Asset at Fair value through P&L (FVTPL)

The subsequent measurement of financial asset depends on their classification. The classification depends on the company’s
business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.
1

Financial Asset at Amortized Cost
Financial Asset’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:
(a) The asset is held within a business mode! whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

{b) Cash flows represent solely for repayment of principal and interest.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition of asset and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. Income from these financial assets is included in interest income using the effective interest rate

method.

Financial Asset at Fair value through OCI (FVTOCI)
‘Financial Asset’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
(a) The objective of the business model is achieved by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financlal assets, and
(b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent solely for repayment of principal and interest. Financial Asset included within
the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are
recognized in the other comprehensive income (0Cl).

Financial Asset at Fair Value through P&L . _
FVTPL is a residual category for Financial Assets. Any financial asset, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at

amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the company may elect to designate a Financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at
FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency

(referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Equity Instruments
All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. The company may make an irrevocable election to

present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument
by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding
dividends, are recognized in the OCI. .

De-recognition of Financial asset
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognized when:

i) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have’expired, or

ii) The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset

iii) The company retains the contractualsghts eceived cash flows from the financial asset but assumes a contractual




Where the company has transferred the asset, the company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial assets. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognized. Where the entity has not
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognized.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of financial
assets, the financial asset is derecognized if the company has not retained control of the asset. Where the company has retains
contro! of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognized to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

Impairment of Financial Assets

In per Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on
the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:
{a) Financial assets that are measured at amortized cost e.g. loans, debt, securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank
balances.
(b) Financial assets that are measured as at FVTOCI
(c) Lease receivables under Ind AS 116
(d) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions
that are within the scope of Ind AS 115 (referred to as “Service Concessional Receivable” in these illustrative financial
statements.
(e) Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL
(f) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

For recognition of impairment loss of finantial assets and risk 'exposure, the Company determines whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to
provide for impairment loss. if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used.

In a subsequent period, if credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, then the company reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument.

Financial Liabilities .
Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial liabilities are recognized when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The
company determines the classification of financial liability at initial recognition. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair
value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial liability except for financial liabilities
classified as fair value through profit or loss.

Subsequent Measurement )
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:

Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through
the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial Liabilities Measured at Fair Value through P pfit or Loss




statement of financial position at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in finance income or finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Fair Value Measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either: ! '

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or most advantageous market must be accessible to the company.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

The entity uses valualion techniques that arg appropriata in tho circumstances ond for which sufficiant data are available Lu
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
1]

Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable

Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the'Company has determined classes of assets & liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and the risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

2.14 Government Grants
Government grants (except those existing on transition date) are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant

will be received and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When
the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

When the company receives grants of non-mopetdfassets. The asset and the grant are recorded at fair value amounts and
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3. Significant Estimates, Judgments and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires management to exercise judgment in applying the company’s accounting policies.
It also requires the use of estimated and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses
and the accompanying disclosures including disclosure of contingent liabilities. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, with revisions recognized in the period in which the
estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

3.1 Contingencies and Commitments

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the company. Potential
liabilities that have a low probability of crystalizing or are very difficult to quantity reliably, are treated as contingent liabilities.
Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes, if any, but are not provided for in the financial statements. There can be no assurance
regarding the final outcome of these legal proceedings.

3.2 Impairment Testing
i Judgment is also required in evaluating the likelihood of collection of customer debt after revenue has been recognized.
This evaluation requires estimates to be made, including the level of provision to be made for amounts with uncertain
recovery profiles. Provisions are based on historical trends in the percentage of debts which are not recovered, or on
more details reviews of individually significant balances.

ii. Determining whether the carrying amount of these assets has any indication of impairment also requires judgment. If an
indication of impairment is identified, further judgment is required to assess whether the carrying amount can be
supported by the net present value of future cash flows forecast to be derived from the asset. This forecast involves cash
flow projections and selecting the appropriate discount rate.

3.3 Taxes
a. The company’s tax change is the sum of the total current and deferred tax charges. The calculation of the company’s total

tax charge necessarily involves a degree of estimation and judgment in respect of certain items whose tax treatment
cannot be finally determined until resolution has been reached with the relevant tax authority or, as appropriate, through
a formal legal process.

b.  Accruals for tax contingencies require management to make judgments and estimates in relation to tax audit issues and
exposures.

¢. The recognition of deferred tax assets is based upon whether it is more likely than not that sufficient and suitable taxable
profits will be available in the future against which the reversal of temporary differences can be deducted. Where the
temporary differences are related to losses, the availability of the losses to offset against forecast taxable profits is also
considered. Recognition therefore involves judgment regarding the future financial performance of the particular legal
entity or Tax Company in which the deferred tax asset has been recognized.

3.4 Fair Value Measurement
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques. In
applying the valuation techniques, management makes maximum use of market inputs and uses estimates and assumptions that
are, as far as possible, consistent with observable data that market participants would use in pricing the instrument. Where
applicable data is not observable, management uses its best estimate about the assumptions that market participants woul!d
make. These estimates may vary form the actu 2

date. For details of the key assumptions (Refer p




PNC Khajuraho Highways Private Limited
CIN :U45500DL2017PTC316427

Notes to The Financial Statements for the Yealr Ended March 31, 2024

2. Property, Plant & Equipments (¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars P.lant & Futmture & lE)ffice Computer Total
Equipments Fixtures Equipments
Gross Carrying Value
At April 01, 2023 2.90 0.21 0.67 - 3.78
Addition during the year 0.62 0.62
Disposal / Adjustments - - - -
AS At March 31, 2024 2.90 0.21 0.67 0.62 4.40
Accumulated Depreciation
At April 01, 2023 0.44 0.01 0.09 - 0.54
Addition during the year 0.45 0.02 0.13 0.06 0.66
Disposal / Adjustments - - -
AS At March 31, 2024 0.88 0.03 0.21 0.06 1.19
Net carrying value
As at March 31, 2024 0.17 0.46 0.56 3.21
& v
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PNC Khajuraho Highways Private Limited
CIN :U45500D12017PTC316427
Notes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2024

Note 3: Non- Current Financial Assets

(T in Lakhs)
Particulars Axat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Service Concession Receivable 50,461.10 56,819.38
Total 50,461.10 56,819.38
Note 4 : Other Non Current Assets
(T in Lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Recoverable from government authorities
GST Input Tax Credit 3,614.06 5,727.42
Tax Deducted at Source-Income Tax & Advance Tax 70.94 7.25
Tax deducted at source- GST 672.77 424.96
Others- -
Security for Electricity 13.94 13.94
Total 4,371.70 6,173.57
Note 5 : Investments
(¥ in Lakhs)
: As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Investments in Mutual Funds 3,561.73 1,280.06
Total 3,561.73 1,280.06
As at As at
Particulars ;
it March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Aggregate Book Value of quoted investments 3,498.92 1,259.88
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 3,561.73 1,280.06
|Aggregate book value of unquoted investments - -
Aggregate amount of impairment on value of investments o o
Note 6. Trade Receivables
(% in Lakhs)
Particulars As at - Asat
' March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Undisputed Trade receivables- considered good
National Highways Authority of India 2,045.41 929.17
Total 2,045.41 929.17

¢




PNC Khajuraho Highways Private Limited
CIN :U45500D12017PTC316427

Notes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2024

(¥ in Lakhs)
Trade receivable Ageing schedule Period A it
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Undisputed Trade receivables- considered good Less than 6 Moths 2,045.41 929.17
6 Months to 1 Year - -
1Yearto 2 Years = =
2 Years to 3 Years - -
More than 3 Years - -
Undisputed Trade receivables- which have significant increase Less than 6 Months - -
6 Months to 1 Year - -
1Year to 2 Years - -
2 Years to 3 Years - -
More than 3 Years -
Undisputed Trade receivables- Credit impaired Less than 6 Months - -
6 Months to 1 Year -
1Yearto 2 Years -
2 Years to 3 Years - -
More than 3 Years - -
Disputed Trade receivables- considered good Less than 6 Months - -
6 Months to 1 Year - -
1Yearto 2 Years - E
2 Years to 3 Years - =
More than 3 Years -
Disputed Trade receivables- which have significant increase Less than 6 Months - -
' 6 Months to 1 Year - -
1Yearto 2 Years - -
2 Years to 3 Years - -
More than 3 Years - -
Disputed Trade receivables- Credit impaired less than 6 Months -
' 6 Months to 1 Year E -
1Yearto 2 Years = -
2 Years to 3 Years - -
More than 3 Years - -
Note 7.1 : Cash & Cash Equivalents
(T in Lakhs)
- As at Asat
Particulars 4 i
: March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cash on Hand 0.36 0.15
Current Accounts 31.92 52.38
Total 32.28 52.53
Note 7.2: Other Bank Balances
(¥ in Lakhs)
- As at As at _
Particulars j
' March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
In Term Deposits (Original Maturity having More than 3 months) 2,345.00 2,150.00
Total 2,345.00 2,150.00
Note 8: Other Current Assets
(T in Lakhs)
Particulars fls at : Afat :
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Accrued Interest on Fixed Deposits ' 85.88 44.13
Advance to Vendors (0.13) 2.90
Others
Prepaid Expenses SSOC; 0.56 0.55
Advance GST Deposited gﬂé\d’ - 0.76
(YIRS Totall o 86.32 48.35
R ¢ VN g
%) ‘i
%"”UA .




PNC Khajuraho Highways Private Limited
CIN :U45500DL2017PTC316427

Notes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2024

Note 9 : Share Capital

1

(¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars Asat fyat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Authorised
4,00,00,000 (P/Y 4,00,00,000) Equity Shares of 'Rs10/- each 4,000.00 4,000.00
'|Equity Shares - Issued, Subscribed & Paid up
3,93,00,000 (P/Y 3,93,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 3,930.00 3,930.00
Notes 9.1
(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the
reporting year
Particulars B3 at fet
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening Balance 3,93,00,000 3,93,00,000
Issued during the year
Outstanding at the end of the year 3,93,00,000 3,93,00,000
Details of Shares held by Promoters
' T sl As at As at
et March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
No of Shares No of Shares
PNC Infratech Limited 10 10
PNC Infra holdings Limited 3,92,99,990 3,92,99,990
% Holding % Holding
PNC Infratech Limited 0.00 0.00
PNC Infra holdings Limited 100.00 100.00

Rights and Restrictions attached to Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of X 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote

per share held. In case any dividend is proposed by the Board of Directors the same is subject to the approval of the shareholders

There are no bonus shares/share issued for consideration other than cash and share bought back since the company

incorporated.

In the event of liquidation of the company, thY‘ % 6

company after distribution of preferential amo dlstnbr' "on shall be in proportion to number of equity shares held by the
. ot

shareholders. i .:J




PNC Khajuraho Highways Private Limited
CIN :U45500DL2017PTC316427
Notes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2024

Note 10: Other Equity

- Retained Earnings (Xin Lakhs)
Particulars Are Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening Balance 2,735.29 2,114.95
Net Profit for the year 247.50 620.34
Closing Balance 2,982.79 2,735.29

Retained Earnings
This comprise company's undistributed profit after taxe

v

¢




PNC Khajuraho Highways Private Limited
CIN :U45500DL2018PTC316427
Notes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2024

Note 11: Borrowings

(T in Lakhs)
Particulars ) Arst ' fEal
‘ March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(A) Secured
Term Loan From Banks 47,192.95 51,912.95
Less- Current maturities of long term debts 4,720.00 4,720.00
42,472.95 47,192.95
{B) Unsecured
Unsecured Loan from Related Party* 6,480.00 6,480.00
Total 48,952.95 53,672.95

*Refer Note-32

Nature of Security and Terms of Repayments for Long Term Borrowings:-

(A) Nature of security -

(i) First charge on all the Company's immovable assets/ movable assets ( except project assets), if any , both present and future.

(ii) First charge over all revenue and recelvables of the Company's from the project or otherwise.
(iii) First charge over the rights, title and interest of the Company's'related to the project from all contracts, insurances, licences,

in to and other all project agreement.

(iv) First rharge aver all the banks accounts of the Company, the Escrow account , sub accounts including major maintenance

account, debt service reserve account.

(v) First charge on all intangibles of the borrower save and except the project assets

(vi) A first charge by way of assignment or otherwise creation on security interest in all the right, titile, interest, benefits, claims,

and demands.

(viii) Pledge of shares held by the promoter and or any other person aggregating to 30%

Note- The aforesaid shall be collectively referred to the “Security”. The above security will rank pari passu interse amongst the

lenders
(B) Terms of Repayment

(i) 24 unequal half yearly installments commenecing

o -a"V

er 6 months from date of Scheduled Commercial Operation date .




PNC Khajuraho Highways Private Limited
CIN :U45500D12017PTC316427

Notes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31,

 Note 12: Other Non Current- Financial Liabilities

(¥ in Lakhs)
: As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Retentions
Others 70.12 51.40
Total 70.12 51.40
Note 13: Provisions
(X in Lakhs)
Particulars fat Arat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note-35) 10.68 9.62
Provision for Leave Encashment (Refer Note-36) 4.04 3.77
Total 14.72 13.39
Note 14: Current Borrowings
(T in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current Maturities of Long Term Debts 4,720.00 4,720.00
Total 4,720.00 4,720.00
Note 15: Trade Payables
(X in Lakhs)
: As at’ As at
Particulars G
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Total outstanding dues of micro, small and medium entereprises* - =
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro, small and medium enterprises# 2,201.17 2,292.30
Total 2,201.17 2,292.30

* The disclosure in respect of the amount payable to enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Company and which
qualify under the definition of micro and small enterbrises as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Development Act 2006 has
' been made in the financial statement as at March 31, 2024 based on the information received and available with the company. On the
basis of such information, no interest is payable to any micro,small and medium enterprises. Auditors have relied upon the

informations provided by the Company.

#includes ¥1900.57 Lakhs payable to related party.(P/Y X 2245.78 Lakhs) Refer Note no -26)

The Company 's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to the trade payable is disclosed note no-28

I L] As at As at
Trade Payables Ageing schedule Period March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
MSME Oto 1Year - =
1Yearto 2 Years - -
2 Years to 3 Years - -
More than 3 Years - -
Others Oto 1 Year 2,201.17 2,292.30

1Yearto 2 Years
2 Years to 3 Years
More than 3 Years

Disoputed dues of MSME

Oto 1 Year
1Yearto 2 Years

2 Years to 3 Years
More than 3 Years

Disoputed dues of Others

Oto1Year
1Yearto 2 Years

2 Years to 3 Years
More than 3 Years

%

7




PNC Khajuraho Highways Private Limited
CIN :U45500D1L2017PTC316427
Notes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2024

Note 16: Other Current Financial Liabilities

(T in Lakhs)
Particulars At AL
5 : March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Salary Payable 19.00 1391
Other Payables 6.28 2331
IE Fees Payable 0.13 -
Total 25.40 37.22
Note 17: Other Current Liabilities
(¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Statutory Dues Payable 5.86 1.14
Total 5.86 1.14
Note 18: Provisions
(T in Lakhs)
Taricolare p— i e
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Prawision fur Grdluily (Refer Note-35) 2.34 1.16
Provision for Leave Encashment (Refer Note 36) 1.10 | 1.44
Total 3.73 2.60
Note 19: Revenue from Operation
(¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Construction Revenue 939.61 756.81
Sale of Material - 0.16
Finance Income on Service Concession Receivables 5,966.03 6,533.91
Total 6,905.64 7,290.88
Note 20: Other Income
(T in Lakhs)
Particulars Yearended Year ended
March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
|Interest on Fixed Deposits 155.73 87.20
Electricity Security Deposits 151 0.62
Interest on Income Tax Refund 28.23 20.19
Income on Redemption of Mutual Funds 130.25 33.14
Gain/(loss) on Fair Valuation of Mutual Funds 42.64 19.66
Total 358.36 160.81

?/,.




PNC Khajuraho Highways Private Limited
CIN :U45500DL2017PTC316427
Notes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2024

Note 21: Employee Benefit Expenses

(T in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Salaries & Wages 157.77 174.81
EPF & Other Contribution 184 1.24
Mess Expenses 3.17 1.76
Staff Accomodation Expenses - 0.97
Total 162.78 178.79
Note 22: Finance Cost
(X in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
i March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Bank Charges 1.19 0.50
Interest Expenses on-Term Loan 4,091.78 4,060.56
Total 4,092.97 4,061.06
Note 23: Other Expenses
(¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
«March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Constructlon Expensess 1,400.93 756.81
Electricity Expenses 257.80 190.70
Legal & Protessional 7.64 7.07
Other Site Expenses 148.51 348.44
Insurance Charges 1.09 1.25
Printing & Stationary 0.52 0.40
Repair & Maintenance Expenses 4,57 6.48
Independent Engineer Fees ' B 81.56
Other Miscellaneous Expenses 4.27 0.69
Labour Cess Expenses 14.42 -
Power & Fuel Expense 60.23 85.69
Mobile,Telephone &Internet Expenses 0.73 1.19
Hire Charegs 71.43 11.58
Corporate Social Responsiblty Expenses* 27.30 16.50
Freight& Cartage 0.76 0.04
|Rates & Taxes 10.16 282.50
Audit Fess Expenses 1.00 1.00
Total 2,011.35 1,791.93

# Construction executed by related party (Refer Noge:H




PNC Khajuraho Highways Private Limited
CIN :U45500D12017PTC316427
Notes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31,2024

*Disclosure with regard to CSR activities

o Partiﬁu!ars Year ended Year ended
o March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
1 Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 27.29 16.17
2 Amount of expenditure incurred 27.30 16.50
3 Shortfall at the end of the year - -
4 Total of previous years shortfall - -
S Reason for shortfall NA NA
Promoting
Education,
. Upliftment of
Promoting women .
- farmers, Medical
6 Nature of CSR activities empowerment & -
. facility, Women
animal welfare, etc.
Empowerment,
Sewing & weaving
Training Centre, etc.
Details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust controlled by
7 the company in relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting NA NA
Standard
Where a provision is made with respect to a Ilablllty incurred by entering into a
8 contractual ohligation, the movements in the proyi ing the year should NA NA

=)

be shown separately




PNC Khajuraho Highways Private Limited
CIN :U45500DL2017PTC316427

Notes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2024

Note 24 : Earning Per Share

(Tin

Lakhs except EPS)

Particulars

Period ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

(a) Profit/(Loss) available to Equity Shareholders (Rs. In lakhs) 247.50 620.34

(b) Weighted Average number of Equity Shares 393.00 393.00

(c) Nominal value of Equity Shares (in Rs.) 10.00 10.00
0.63 1.58

(d) Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share [{a)/(b)

Note 25 : Operating Segment Information

The Company operates in only one segment, namely “Infrastructure developemnt of Hybrid Annuity Model” hence there are no
reportable segments under Ind AS-108 ‘Segment Reporting’. Hence, separate business segment information is not applicable.

The directors of the company has been identified as The Chief Operating Decision Maker {CODM). The Chief Operating Decision Maker
also monitors the operating results as one single segment for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment and hence, there are no additional disclosures to be provided other than those already provided in the

financial statements.

There is only one customer having more than 10% of t




PNC Khajuraho Highways Private Limited
CIN :U45500D12018PTC316427
Notes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2024

Note 26 : Related Party Transactions
(A) List of Related Parties

(a) Parent Entity

Ownership Interest
Name Type As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
PNC Infra holdings Limited  Immediate holding 100% 100%
company
PNC Infratech Limited* Ultimate holding - -
* holds 10 Equity Shares .
{B) Transactions between Related Parties
The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business.
(X in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
r. Nature of transaction
ikis: March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1 Utility Shifiting Contract & Others
PNC Infratech Limited 939.61 756.81
2 Unsecured Loan taken
PNC Infratech Limited - 5,500.00
3 Unsecured Loan repayment
PNC Infraterh | imited 5,500.00
1 Hirc Charges
PNC Infratech Limited 57.60 -
5 Purchase of material & assets
PNC Infratech Limited 27.90 44.89
(C) Balance Outstanding at the end of the year:-
(T in Lakhs)
As at As at
Sr.N Particulars - -
i = March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1 |Trade Payables
PNC Infratech Limited 1,900.57 2,245.78
2 Unsecured Loan Payable
PNC Infratech Limited 6,480.00 6,480.00
3 Other Advances Given
PNC Infratech Limited - 2.75
(D)  Compensation to Key Managerial Personnel
(X in Lakhs)
Year ended Yearended
E Key Managerial Personnel ; ;
5r. No y & March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1 Neelam Rohera 0.36 1.38
2 Sonal Sharma 0.38 1.38

(E) Terms and Conditions

The transactions with the related parties afg
assessment is under taken each financidl ¥

which the related party operates. All O 15 ar';l\;iin lahces
* W | 1

S

will be settled in cash.
g 7
5

Bxamining the financial position of the related party and in the market in




- 8v°88Z LY < 8v'882'LY |ej0) &
- £5°S6 = €956 sanjiqer [edueuly 18Y10
- S6'Z6TLY - S6'Z6T'LY sgumoliog
. . . sanijiqen jepueutd (n
- 0T 19b'0S - 0T°'T9t'0S leloL
e 0T’ 19%'0S 0T'19%'0S 3|gBAII3Y UOISSIUOD) DIINISS
$13ssy |epueuly (1)
¥20Z ‘1€ Yd24eIAl 3 PIsoIsip a.e sanjea
. JI8} YPIYM 1o} 1503 pasiowe je pasnsesw san|iqel] pue sjassy jepueuly (v)
(E19A37] [ZEA=T)
T2
sindu) sinduy = Mnm_ >.”_v Spird e .
s]qeasasqoun 3|qensasqo = ..“_u:u,_ bu”M MM mN w:.ﬂ‘:mu siejnapJed
Juedyusis Juedyudis i ik

3uISn JUAWBINSEIN IN|BA JiE4

|BIJUBUIY Ul PISO|ISIP 34e sanjea 418} YdIym 10} pue 1503 pasipiowe je painsesw aJe

(syye ur )

-1 MOJ2q PaGUIS3P se ¢ |9A3T 01 T |37 D3u] padnoud ‘sapy
"SpJEpUBLS BURUNOIIE Y} JpUN PaGUISaId S[3A3] 3.Y3 OIUI SIUSWINIISUL Jeidueuyy

SIqBAIBSqOUN 5| JU3WRINSE3W 3NjeA Jiey 3y} 0} JuedyIUBIS S| eyl Indul [9A3] 1SIMO] BU1 YIIYM 10} sanbiuyda) uonen|ep :¢ |9Aa]

31qeA135q0 Apdauipul 1o Adaua s JudLWaINseaw anjeA Jiey ay3 03 Juedugss si 1eyy ndu [PA3] 153M0] BU3 Y21ym 10} s3NbIUYIF) UOEN(EA 7 [3A]

‘SenliIqel] Jo 513sse 1eanUIPI J0) S3Mew SAde u) s3o1d 1SxJew (parsnipeun) patony T [oAS]

qey| pue jasse s Auedwo) jo Aydsesaiy Juawainseaw anjen iey ays sapiaoad 3jqe} Suimoljoy sy
§-1 payissep sey dnoJd ay3 ‘sanjen Jiey Bujuiwialsp ui pasn sindul jo Ayjiqeras ay3 Inoge uonesipul ue 3piaoid 0] ‘sjuswale)s

-BU3 suUSLINAQsUY [e1DUBUY SYY 4O SBN[EA JiB} SY) SUIUILIBIAP Ul BPEW S3IBLUNSS pue swawa3pnl 3y} sulejdxa uoIIS SIyy

Aydiesaiy anjep Jiey (1)

2 = L8'€6T'YS - 5 S9'680°6Y SaiH|igen |epueuly [e3o)
E g 19'88 - - €5'66 sol|Iqen |epueuly Jsy10
. - 0€'262'C - = LT'T02'C sajqeAed apeJy
S6'CT6'TS . - S6°Z6T'LY s3uimouiog
sapjiqer jepueuly
S 90°08Z‘T 80'1S6'6S * I'T9S‘E 6L°€88'VS 513SSY [epueuld jejo)
= z €5°207°C - E 8T LLE'T saduejeg jueq pue ysed
- E L1626 = = Ir'svo'e 3|qeAII3Y apedy
90°08¢'T - - €1°785°e - SJUBWIISIAU|
- % 8€'6T89S = - 0T'T9¢'0S 3|qeAIad3Y UOISSIIUOD) IIAIBS
1355y |edpuRUY
1201Ad Td1Nd 150) pasiowy 13014 1dINd 150 pasiJowy saeqnoi t =
€207 ‘TE Y1 je sy PZCT ‘TE Ydoie e sy i -
(sunequiy)

A10321e) AqQ syuawinaysu) [epueury

's3|eA Jiey sajewixoidde A|qeuosess syuawniysu [eloUBUY SLE JO sJunowe JuiAuied sy ‘suawiniysul [erueuy s Auedwod 3yi Jo anjea e} pue Junotue Buihused Jo ssep Aq uojsuedwo) ug

1USWAINSEIA AN|BA JIe4 : /7 310N

€207 ‘TE YoJe\ papug Jeap ay) 10 Sjuswalels lerdueuly ayj 03 sajoN
LTYITEIL48TOZIAV0SSYN: NID
B P3nwin 3ealld sAemydiy oyesnleyy Hng




‘91ep Juswiaunseaw ay3 Je sjued)diped 19yiew USBMIS] UORDBSUERI) A
1€ papnjoul aJe sap||iqelj pue s)asse |eldueUY 343 JO SIN|BA 1By By "S|qe|ieAe 1P JURA3|3J JSOW pue 2534 8y} Suisn s3i

03 pPaJ3pisuoa s) Auedwod ay3 10§ 3ueULIONId-UOU JO YsIY 318l s8umollog s Janss| ayy s3
"SANSUIBIBYD HSH I3Y10 PUB YSI UPID ‘SI013BY YU AIUNOD dIy19ads ‘Sa3es 153U3)u) se 4ans sualawe.

'3N|eA Jley Byl s| Junowe SulAlied ay) pue anjea

MO} Ysea pa3unoasip a3 Buisn Aq paUOWLIRIBP BuIaq S| 3N|eA Jley SI03B) ¥SI JAYIO PUE BlaJ JSaUB)I SB Yans siajaweled uo pa3en|eas aie suonualaL pue sysods

L3} Hoys 41343 03 3np  3neA Jiey J13Y3 3q 03 PAJAPISUOD 3ue '3 a|qeAed sasuadxa ‘suonuaial/syscdap Wi} HOys ‘sju3jeainb3 yses pue ysed ‘sJuimousoq wiay poys ‘sajqeAed apeuy Jo sjunowe Suil

qel| pue s3asse |ejpueuly

(42q)
13234 aped} JO an|en Jiey ayl

"uonien|ea uj Jueaiyudisul aq

J3]§34 3841 3384 JUNOISIP BUlsn poylaw (45Q) Mo}y ysed paunodsip ay) Suisn Aq pauiwiiep s| anjea Jiey Suimourioq o4
ed uo paseq Auedwo) 3y} Aq palen|eas ase s3uIM0.110q / S3|qRAIRI3) SleJ-3|qeLieA pue 2)eJ-paxyy wu)-5uon

‘3injeu

Je) ayL
iSanjeA Jiey ajewinss o} pasn ale suondwinsse pue poylaw Sumoyjoy sy

SisA|eUE MO} ysed pa3unodsip Bulsn PaUILIAISP SI 150D PASILIOWE 1B SaNIjIqel| Fue sjasse [BI2UBULY JO BN|BA J1R) Y] <

“S3PN[UI JUSWINIISUI [BIDUBLY 3N{eA 03 P3SN BNnbjuyd3) uoREN|eA JYIAdS

143pJo ue uy Ayijiqel| e J3ysuedy 03 pled 10 33SSE UE (|35 O} PAAISIRI 3G pjNoMm ey} unowe ayy
Iqel] [eIdUBUY JO S335SE [RIDUBLY SNn|eA 0} SAUNP330.d pue s3p1jod sutejulew Auedwo) ay|

an|eA Jied SUIWIBP 03 Pasn sanbjuyda) uonenjeA (1

3uisn Juawaunsealy anjep Jieg

- wm.ﬂo.o.wm 3 95°T00°2S 1eloL
19'88 T9°'88 sa13|iqen [eueuly 18Y10
£16'TS S6°Z16'1S sSuimo.log
sanger jepueutd (i
- 8€'6189S = 8€°618'9S 101 .
8€'6T8'9S - 8€'618'9S 9]qBAIB23Y UOISSIIUO0Y) BIIAIS
$39s5Y [elpueuny (1)
€207 ‘T€ YdJeN e paso|dsip aJe sanjea
Jigj YdIlym 10} 3502 pasiuowe je painsesw Salf|iger pue syassy |epueuly ()
(€ 19A9T] (4 ELER)]
By i uwv_Mﬁm__\”,‘“H__wudx TT0T ‘TE Yorew
I|qeatasqoun a|qeAasasqo = sJejnanueqd
wweoiyugis Juestudis ul 3ud pajonp anjep 3uidiie)

[ETTPY)

€202 ‘T€ Y4 Papu3 JedA 3y 10§ SjUBLIDIELS [BDUBLLY By O S30N

LTYITEILISTOZ1QA00SSYN: NID
Pajwi 3jeatd shemySiH oyeinfeyy INd




‘awn jo pouad

ok

ac 3ty 3dud

“Isl 98ueyoxa udialof Aue 03 pasodxa 10u s) Auedwod 3y3 ‘210421343 BUIPUBISINO SIYqeAISdAI UF)340) pue sa|qeAed
apeJ3 Asua.una uialo) Aue aaey 3,usaop osje pue sueof Asus.and ugia.ioy Aue pauieiqo jou sey Auedwo) aya se pue Ajjeuoizeusaul sszerado Jou S30p ainjeu Aq Auedwo) sy
As1y Aduauin) udialoy (q)

—

J)

4

959'65¢/95°65¢- 0S-/0S+ €20Z°TE Yoo
96'S€7/96°SET- 05-/0S+ ¥Z02'1€ Yasey

Xe} 310}3q sjulod siseq siejndiped
130.4d uo 11343 ug 3seasdap/aseassu)

(syyequry)
-SMOJj0} se SuImO.10q 4O 3. 353133u] Ul 35UeYD 0 Joedw 3y3 y3noup paydaye si xey 31039 1yod s, Auedwod
U3 ‘JUBISUCD p|3y 3|qelIBA JYIO ||B Yy "PRIdaYe Suimouroq yo uciuod Jeyy uo a1ed 3saa8)U1 Ul 93ueyd sqissod Ajqeuosesas e o3 Ayasuss ayy sajeJisuowsap ajqel Suimoj|oy 3y
Annsuag arey 1sa1au) (n

S6°CI6'TS S6C6T'LY suImo110q 238 S|qelieA

€20Z “TE Ye vz0Z Sie|ndied
je sy ‘L€ Yaiey je sy

(syxey up 3) ] ainsodx3 ysiy 15aJ33u] (|

st 13xJew sicyuow Ajaso)d Auedwiod ayy “ysil 3jel 152J43)u1 33e811W 0] *saes Suneoy) 1e aze yoiym
sduimouioq Suireaq 159J33u1 WOl Ajurew sasue ysu 3sa133u1 Auedwod ayy 104 ‘sejes 153J3U1 33¥JEW Ul JUBWSAOW 40 3unodde uo yjoid pue mojy yses s, Auedwod sy ¥Su 1. 1534393u)

ASIY 31ey 35a13)u) (e)

"SIUSWNIISUL [BIDUBUIY SAIIBALISP PUE ‘SIUBWIISIAU ‘SHSODDP ‘sduimolloq
Pue sueoj spnjoul 3su 33xJew Aq pa1daye sjuswniysul [eldueUlY *>s1 9o14d Aypowwiod pue ysi 95ud Aynba se 43ns ‘s3sis 214d J3YI0 pue Xsi) el 3S8I93UI “Ysia 318 AJuaLInD IS
40 sadAy sauys asudwod s921d 1351 "s921d 1ax1eW Ul saFueyd 40 dsnedaq mum:«.u:c [ItM JusWwnnsul |eDUBULY B JO SMO]) YSEI 31N3NY 10 dNjeA .:& 3yl 1BY3 YSH 3Y3 SIS IR
Asiy wpiey |
sk Aupinb)| pue sysu 31paJss “ysu 39deW 0} pasodxa ate sanaioe s,Auedwo) 2yl

'suonesado
) wody Apdaaip asue jeyy sysodap WJs3-Uoys pue ysed pue 's3|qensdal Jay3o pue spedy ‘ Ueo| sapnjaul 33sse |eldueuly [ediound Auedwo) ayy ‘suoiesado s,Auedwo) ayj Joy saoueuny

a8euew o0y s| sanuNqel [epueuy 353} jo 3sodund ulew ay ‘sajgeded Jayio pue apeJ] ‘sSuimoulog asdwod ‘SBAIIRALIDD UBY) JBYIO0 ‘S

qej| |e1oueuly jediduiad s, Auedwo) sy

uawadeuep ysty [eldueuly 1 87 910N

¥20Z ‘T€ YdJew papug Jea) ayy 404 sjuswalels |edueuly 3y) 03 saj0N

LTYITEILALTOTIAVOSSYN: NID
PalwI) d1eAd sAemySiH oyeanfeyy DN



Z6'EVE'S9 00°€08'8Y 00°0vv'6 26'00T°L - LB'EGT'YS 1elon
19'88 - = 19°88 - 19°88 sanljiqel] Jlay3o
0€'2762°C - = ogzeT'e 5 0€'262'C s3|qeded apeu)
00'€96'29 00°€08'8Y 00'0v¥'s 00'0ZL'V = S6°TI6'TS sduimoulog
Jeak@aiygy
13 Qu) , :
jeloL SIBDA € URY] BIOW UBY] 553] pue Jeak fkirseas puewsaqg up unowy 3ujhiien | €202 ‘TE Y21\l 1B SY
JUO UBY]) IO oy :
(syyequi y)
S9°696'SS S6'ZTS'6E 00°0vv's 04'9T0°L - "~ §9'696'SS : |ejol
€5°66 - ™ £S°S6 - €5°96 saujiqel] ;B3RO
L1102°C - - LT°102°C = LTT02°C sa|qeAeqd apes)
S6'TLY'ES S6°2T5'6€ 00°0¥¥’6 000ZL'y = S6°7/9'ES s3uimouiog
JB3A 334y} "
1e3) auQ ;
|elol SIEJA € UBYI BJOIN UBY) SS3| pue Jeah R puewsq ugQ junowy SujAiier . 4202 ‘TE Ya24e 1B sy
9UO UeY) IO A
(syyequr )

:suswAed paunodsipun |EN13e41U02 UO paseq alep Suipodal au 3e SSIH|IGEl) JeldUBUY O S31INYELW |en)desuod Bujulewsas oy Suipsedal sjielap sapinoid Mo|3q 3|qe3 3y
"SMOJJ ysed pa3aadxa Jo siseq ayy
uo 1sed3.104 ‘8uljjos ysnoiyy uonisod Anpinbi) 18u s Auedwos 93 s1:0)uowW JusWaIBeurA JuswaFeueww J0IUBS AQ USISISAD ale As1 Yons o3 pajejal sa1d)jod pue sassadold ‘uoippe
Ul JUSWaTeurW JUBWS|NIS B ||am se Sulpuny ‘Anpinbi) Joy sqisuodsal 31 JuswaFeuew sAuedwo) ay| ‘syuawauinbal [esa3e)j0d pue ysed s3| 193w 01 Aypinbi| Jo sjans] wnwido
UIBJUIBW S3LIR |[e 3. 03 sI 3ARIRIq0 s Auedwo) 3y 2a1d B|qeuoses e e Jo awiy uo uo1eSI|qo 531 193W 10 3[3I3s 01 3)qe 3q 30U {IIM Auedwod 1eU1 §SM 3Y3 Se paulyspTs| ysit Aupinbn
ysty Aupinbny
"satouage Surlel yPaJd JASIWOP pue [euokIRUIBIUI
Aq pau8isse sSunel 1paud ySiy yum suonnisug [B15UBLY pue siueq Yum s)isodap ul 3saAul Ajjelsuag am se paywi st sjusjeanba Ysed pue Ysed uo 3su UPSID S PRI
Aue 03 pasodxa jou s1 Auedwod a10j319yy’ Aoyine Jusuwiianog e s| yuym ‘paAsINRI 3g 03 Jues8 ay3 ay3 JsureSe ase sey Auedwod e 1By} s8|qeAaldal apeJ) auo Ajuo sey Auedwoa ay)
Sjuawisdueyua 31pasd Jo saauesend Aued paiyy 4o Aljenb ayy uj o uonesiqo ay; Supoddns |esaie)jod jo anjeA ay3 ui sadueyd Juedyiusis (A)
. Ayediaunos SLUES SY1 JO SJUBWINIISUI [BISURUYY JBYIO U XS 3IPaID Ul 95B3I0U] weapudis (A1)

uones||qo sy 13aw 03 Apge s,Muedisaunod ay3 o} a8ueyd Juediusis e asned 03 paydadxa ale 1By3 SUORIPUOI JIWOUOIS JO [e1dueUl (11t

“Auediaunod ay) o synsas Sunesado 3Y3 ui sadueyd Juedyudis pa1dadxa Jo enpy (n)
"SS3UISNQ Ul sa3ueyd 3siaApe JuedlIuS)s pa3dadxa Jo |enyoy (1)

*SE 43NS uonewIou Sujoo| piemioy auoddns Fue jceuosesy SJ3PISUOD Y s 31patd ul 3seaudul JuediyuS)s s assyy Jaylaym ssasse o] “pouad Sujpodas yoes

ysnouys siseq 3ul08 uo ue uo st PPaud ul 9SBAIIUI JUBIYIUSIS B USC SBY 2UBY] JSYIBYM puE S}asse 40 uoniusodas [enur uodn yneyap jo Anniqeqoud ayy siapisuos Auedwon a3y

*3]qeAIad31 s3UNoJde
40 Buiade pue $1g3p peq [e3L0ISIY JO SisAjeue pue ‘SPUR.3 2JWOU0I3 JL 1IN ‘SUOINPUOI [BIdUBUL Y} JUNOIIE O3u! Bupyey ‘s1aWO3SN Jo AljIqeral [e1oueul Sy)

sassasse Ajjesporiad
Auedwo) ayy ‘siy3 seuew o) Auedwon ay; o3 SSOJ |e1dueuy ul Sui3 Ns3s sUOIIRSIQO [BN3DRIIUOI SH UO neyap |iim Auediaaunod aya jeyy Aupgissod ayy WIoJ} S3SLIe S UpaL)

ASly upasd

YZ0Z ‘TE Y2B Papu3 JedA 3y J0j SJU3WaLeIS [BIDURULY ) 0} SAION

LTYITEILALTOZIA0OSSTN: NID
Panw a1eAud shemysiy oyeanfeyy INd



00°09£Z 0Z'Z8L2 1eloL
= oz'zey 159 jo puewsap paindsiqg
00°09€Z 00'09€Z (Auedwo) ay3 jo jjeyaq uo Palwi yasjenu| INd a1 3uipjoy ajewyn Aq panss|) @ajueleny yueg
€207 "TEYPIEW | 207 TE Yiew ing
i ie sy i _
(syneq vy 3)

- S31H|iqel] uadnuo): 1°62 310N

-(104 papinoud Jou puaa ay3 03) SIUBWHWWOY pue saiH|Iqel] JuaSiuo): gz 910N

YZ0Z ‘TE Y21 P3pu3 JeaA 2y Joj siuswales edURUL BY) 03 S30N

LTVYITEILALTOZIAOOSSYN: NID
Pajwi ajealld shkemysiy oyesnfeyy INd



PNC Khajuraho Highways Private Limited
CIN :U45500DL2017PTC316427
Notes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2024

Note 30 : Capital Management

The primary objective of the Company’s Capital Management is to maximize the shareholder value and also maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce cost of capital. In order to manage the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend paid to
shareholders, return on capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of
the financial covenants, if any.The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net

debt.

(T In Lakhs)
: As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Total Borrowings (excluding unsecured loan taken from related party refer Note No-26) 47,192.95 51,912.95
Less- Cash & Cash Equivalents 2,377.28 2,202.53
Debt (A) 44,815.67 49,710.42
Equity Share Capital (including unsecured loan taken from related party refer Note No-26) 10,410.00 10,410.00
Other Equity 2,982.79 . 2,735.29
Total Equity (B) 13,392.79 13,145.29
Debt to Equity ratio (A/B) 3.35 3.78

Note 31 : Concession Arrangement- Main Features

i) Name of the Concession PNC Khajuraho Highways (P) Limited

ii} Description of Arrangements Development of Four laning of Jhansi Khajuraha section {pkg-1)
of NH 75/76 from Design Chainage km 76.300 (existing chainage
82.100) near village Chhatipahari to Design Chainge km 161.790
existing chainage km 57.900 near Bamitha town in the state of
UP/MP under NHDP (Phase I1l) of Hybrid Annuity Mode.

iii) Significant Term of Arrangemnts Period of Concession: 15 years from COD
Construction Period : 910 days
Remuneration: Annuity, Interest, O&M
Investment grant from Concession grantor: Yes
Infrastructure return to grantor at end of Concession : Yes
Investment and renewal obligation: No
Repricing dates- Half yearly for O&M basis upon which
repricing or re negotiation is determined : Inflation price
index as defined in concession agreement.
Note 32 : Unsecured loan of ¥ 6,480.00 Lakhs taken by the company from related party( Ultimate parent Company) is in lieu of equity
as per terms of Concession Agreement dated June 07, 2017, which is interest free.

Note 33 : Details of loan given, investments made and guarntee given covered U/s 186 of the Companies Act,2013-

The Company is engaged in the business of providing infrastrucal facilities as specified under Schedule VI of the Companies Act 2013,
(the "Act") and hence the provision of section 186 of the Act related to loan/ gaurntees given or securities provided are ngt appiicabie
to the Company. There are no investments made by the Company during the period.

ped /rearranged,whereever necessary to confirm current year classification.

g v T
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PNC Khajuraho Highways Private Limited
CIN :U45500DL2017PTC316427

Notes to The Financial Statements for the Year Endea March 31, 2024

Note 35 -The disclosure is required by INDAS-19 " Employee Benefits" are as under-
The Liability for Employee Gratuity is deteremined on acturial valuation using Projected unit credit method.

The obligation are as under-
Table A: Change in Defined Benefit Obligation

Table 1: Member Data Statistics

= For the period ending
S.No. Particulars 31.03-2023 31-03-2024
1 Number of Employees 61.00 .~ 58.00
2 Normal Retirement Age 60.00 60.00
3 Average Age (in yrs) 35.00 34.69
4 Average Past Service (in yrs) 3.00 3.66
5 Average Monthly Salary (in Rs) 14,293.00 13,296.55
6 Future Service (in yrs) 25.00 25.31
7 Weighted Average duration of DBO 4.00 3.93

Table 2: Benefits Valued

1 Eligibility
2 Gratuity Salary

3 Service

4 Minimum vesting period

5 Normal Reliieinenl Beneflt

8 Dealli/Dlsabllity In Service Benefit

7 Leaving Service Benefit

All permanent employees

Basic + DA (if applicable)

Completed years of service, service of 6
manths & ahove is rounded as one year

5 Years of continuous service
158/28*Swrvice " Gratulty Salary, cubject to
20,00,000/

Same as normal retirement benetit

If leaves after 5 years of continuous service
— Normal Retirement Benefit.

If leaves before 5 years of continuous
service — Nil

Table 3: Significant Actuarial Assumptions

- For the period ending
S.No. Particul

2 s 31-03-2023 31-03-2024
1 Discount Rate 7.00% 6.96%
2 Expected Return on Plan Assets 0.00% 0.00%
3 Salary Escalation Rate (p.a.) 5.00% 5.00%
4 Attrition Rate (p.a.) 25.00% 25.00%
5 Mortality Rate 100% of IALM 41974 | 100% of IALM 12-14
6 Disability Rate No explicit No explicit

¢ Wﬁ/\ Yo




PNC Khajuraho Highways Private Limited
CIN :U45500DL2017PTC316427

Notes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2024

Valuation Disclosure Tables
Table 4: Change in Defined Benefit Obligation

S.No Particulars 01-04-2022 To 01-04-2023 To
. 31-03-2023 31-03-2024
1 Defined benefit obligation at beginning of period - 10.78
2 Service cost
a. Current service cost , 3.29 2.53
b. Past service cost - vested 7.49 -
c. Past service cost - unvested - -
3 Interest expenses - 0.75
4 Cash flows
a. Benefit payments from plan < -
b. Benefit payments from employer - -
5 Actuarial Gains and Losses
a. Effect of changes in demographic assumptions -
b. Effect of changes in financial assumptions - 0.02
c. Effect of experience adjustments - (1.07)
6 Transfer In' /Out
a. Transfer In - -
b. Transfer out - -
7 Defined benefit obligation at end of period 10.78 13.02
Bifurcation of the present value nf nhligatinn at the end of the year
Particulars 31-03-2023 31-03-2024
Current Obligations 1.16 2.34
Non-Current Obligations 9.62 10.68
Total Obligation 10.78 13.02

Table 5: Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets

S.No. = ' Particulars

1 01-04-2022 To
31-03-2023

01-04-2023 To
31-03-2024

1 Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period

Other Adjustments
Charges and Taxes
Expected return on plan assets

Cashflows

a. Total employer's contribution

(i) Employer contributions

(ii) Employer direct benefit payments

b. Benefit payments from plan assets

c. Benefit payments from employer
Actuarial Gains and Losses on Plan Assets

6 a. Effect of changes in financial assumptions
b. Effect of experience adjustments ‘

7 Transfer In /Out

a. Transfer In

b. Transfer out

8  [Fair value of plan assets at en
9 Actual Return On Plan Assets

U b wN




PNC Khajuraho Highways Private Limited
CIN :U45500DL2017PTC316427

Notes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2024

Table 6: Amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet

S.No. Particulars 01-04-2022 To 01-04-2023 To
31-03-2023 31-03-2024
1 Defined benefit obligation 10.78 13.02
2 Fair value of plan assets - -
3 Funded status - Deficit/ (Surplus) 10.78 13.02
4 Effect of asset ceiling - -
5 Net defined benefit - (Liability)/ Asset (10.78) (13.02)

Table 7: Net Periodic benefit cost recognized in the Profit and Loss

S.No. Particulars 01-04-2022 To 01-04-2023 To
31-03-2023 31-03-2024
1 Current Service Cost 3.29 2.53
2 Interest Expense - Obligation - 0.75
3 Interest (Income) - Plan Assets - -
4 Past Service Cost 7.49 -
5 Net Periodic benefit cost recognized inthe P & L 10.78 3.29

Table 8: Re-measurement

S.No Particulars 01-04-2022 To 01-04-2023 To
i ; 31-03-2023 31-03-2024
1 Actuarial (Gains)/ Losses on obligations - - (1.05)
2 Return on Plan Assets, excluding amounl recognized in the nat - -
3 Change in Asset Ceiling - -
4 Re-measurement Cost/ (Credit) for the year - (1.05)

Table 9: Balance Sheet Reconcilliation

S.No. Particulars 01-04-2022 To 01-04-2023 To
31-03-2023 31-03-2024
1 Net defined benefit (liability) asset at beginning of period - (10.78)
2 Unrecognised past service cost at the beginning of the period - -
3 Expense In the P& L (10.78) (3.29)
4 Total Remeasurements included in OCI - 1.05
5 Employer's Total Contribution - -
6 Net transfer - -
7 Unrecognised past service cost at the end aEthe period - -
8 Net defined benefit (liability) asset as&@:i:%%a@ (10.78) (13.02)
— -
1% g




PNC Khajuraho Highways Private Limited
CIN :U45500DL2017PTC316427

Notes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2024

Table10: Expected Future Cashflows & Discontinuance Liability

1 Expected employer contributions Next year 2.53
2 Discontinuance liability 18.07
Expected Benefit
S.No Year Ending March 31, Payment
(in Rs.)
1 2025 2.50
2 2026 2.45
3 2027 2.23
4 2028 231
5 . 2029 ¢ 1.68
6 2030 - 2035 4.33

Table 11: Recognistion of Past Service Cost

S.No. Particulars

01-04-2022 To
31-03-2023

01-04-2023 To
31-03-2024

Unrecognized Past Service Cost/(Credit) as at the beginning of the - -
Past Service Cost (Credit) for the perind 7.49 2
Past Service (Cost)/ Credit recognized during the period (7.49) -
Unrecognized Past Service Cost/(Credit) as at the end of period - -

S W R

Table 12: Major Categories of Plan Assets(as a % of total Plan Asscts)

S For the period ending -
S.No. Asset Categories 31-03-2023 31.03-2024
1 Government of India Securities 0.00% 0.00%
2 State Government Securities 0.00% 0.00%
3 High Quality Corporate Bonds 0.00% 0.00%
4 Equity shares of listed companies ' 0.00% ' 0.00%
5 Property 0.00% 0.00%
6 Special Deposit Scheme 0.00% 0.00%
7 Funds managed by Insurer 0.00% 0.00%
8 Others (to specify) 0.00% 0.00%
9 Total : 0.00% 0.00%

Table 13: Sensitivity of Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) to key assumptions
The financial results are sensitive to the actuarial assumptions. The changes to the Defined Benefit Obligations for

S.No. Scenario DBO Variation
1 Under Base Scenario 13.02 0.00%
2 Salary Increase Rate - Plus 100 Basis Points 13.44 3.20%
3 |Salary Increase Rate - Minus 100 Basis Points 12.62 -3.04%
4 Withdrawal Rate - Plus 100 Basis Points 12.95 -0.53%
) Withdrawal Rate - Minus 100 Basis Pgj 13.09 0.52%
6 12.58 -3.40%
7 13.49 3.65%




PNC Khajuraho Highways Private Limited

CIN :U45500DL2017PTC316427

Notes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2024

Table 14: Risk Exposure

Provision of a defined benefit scheme poses certain risks as companies take on uncertain long term obligations to make

future pension payments as follows:

Liability Risks

| Asset-Liability Mismatch Risk

Risk if there is a mismatch in the duration
of the assets relative to the liabilities. By
matching duration with the defined benefit
liabilities, the company is successfully able
to neutralize valuation swings caused by
interest rate movements. Hence companies
are encouraged to adopt asset-liability
management.

Il Discount Rate Risk

Variations in the discount rate used to
compute the present value of the liabilities
may seem small, but in practice can have a
significant impact on the defined benefit
liabilities.

Since price inflation and salary growth are
linked economically, they are combined for
disclosure purposes. Rising salaries will
often result in higher future defined benefit
payments resulting' in a higher present
value of liabilities especially unexpected
salary increases provided at management’s
discretion may Icad to cstimation

uncertainties increasing this risk.

default on paying the benefits i

1
il Future Salary Escalation and.Inflation Risk -
Unfunded Plan Risk ,
This represents unmanaged risk an :
2 . CS.J ClAN
c"’.!-’hc.n

ing liability. There is an inherent risk here that the company may
stances. Funding the plan removes volatility from the balance

sheet and better manages defj qbfhenefit ri rough increased returns
- et
2| New Pl
N\ %(/




PNC Khajuraho Highways Private Limited
CIN :U45500DL2017PTC316427

Notes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2024

Note 36 -The disclosure is required by INDAS-19 " Employee Benefits" are as under-
The liability for Employee Leave Plan is detereminded on acturial valuation using Projected unit credit method.

The obligation are as under-

Table 1: Member Data Statistics

Particulars

For the period ending

o 31-03-2023 31-03-2024
1 Number of Employees 61 58
2 Normal Retirement Age 60 60
3 Average Age (in yrs) 35.00 34.69
4  |Average Monthly Encashment Salary 14,293 13,297 |
5 [Total Leave balance (in days) 1,320 1,334
6 Weighted Average duration of DBO 4.00 3.93

Table 2: Benefits Valued
1 |Type of Plan Other Long Term Benefits
2 Normal Retirement Age 60
3 )Salary tor calculation of leave encashment Basic
4  |Salary for calculation of leave availment Not Used
5 |Type of leave valued Privilege Leave
6 |Cap on leave accumulation 45 Days
7  |Encashment during employment Not Allowed
8 Days in a manth (for calculations) 30 days
9 [Normal Retirement Benefit 1/30 x salary x number of unused leave
days
10 |Death in Service Benefit Same as normal retirement
11 [Leaving Service Benefit Same as normal retirement
12 |Availment Pattern NA
13 |Encashment in service - Pattern NA
Table 3: Significant Actuarial Assumptions
For the period ending

Pl i 31-03-2023 31-03-2024
1 Discount Rate 7.00% 6.96%
2 Expected Return on Plan Assets 0.00% 0.00%
3 |Salary Escalation Rate (p.a.) 5.00% 5.00%
4  [|Attrition Rate (p.a.) 25.00% 25.00%
5  |Mortality Rate 100% IALM 2012-14 | 100% 'Ale 2012'
6 |Disability Rate CIAN No explicit provision No explicit

- —
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PNC Khajuraho Highways Private Limited
CIN :U45500DL2017PTC316427 :
Notes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2024

Valuation Disclosure Tables

Table 4: Change in Defined Benefit Obligation
- 2 01-04-2022 To 01-04-2023 To
S.No. For the Period 31.03-2023 31-03-2024
1 Defined benefit obligation at beginning of period - 5.21
2 Service cost
a. Current service cost 5.21 1.47
b. Past service cost - vested - 0.48
c. Past service cost - unvested - E
3 |Interest expenses ' - 0.36
4 Cash flows
a. Benefit payments from plan - -
b. Benefit payments from employer - -
5 |Actuarial Gains and Losses
a. Effect of changes in demographic assumptions 1.43 -
b. Effect of changes in financial assumptions (1.43) 0.01
c. Effect of experience adjustments - (2.09)
6 Transfer In /Out
a. Transfer In - -
b. Transfer out - -
7 Defined benefil obligation at end of period 5.21 5.43
Bifurcation of the present value of obligation at the end of the year
Particulars 31-03-2023 31-03-2024
Current Obligations 1.44 1.40
Non-Current Obligations _ 3.77 4.04
Total Obligation ' 5.21 5.43

Table 5: Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets

S.No. For the Period

01-04-2022 To

01-04-2023 To

a. Total employer's contribution

(i) Employer contributions

(i) Employer direct benefit payments

b. Benefit payments from plan assets

c. Benefit payments from employer

Actuarial Gains and Losses on Plan Assets

6 a. Effect of changes in financial assumptions '
b. Effect of experience adjustments

7 Transfer In /Out

a. Transfer In

b. Transfer out

8 Fair value of plan assets at end of-p& Tou

9 Actual Return On Plan Assets -

; 31-03-2023 - 31-03-2024
1 Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period - -
2 Other Adjustments = =
3  |Charges and Taxes C -
4 Expected return on plan assets - o
5 |Cashflows




PNC Khajuraho Highways Private Limited
CIN :U45500DL2017PTC316427
Notes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2024

Table 6: Amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet

= 01-04-2022 To 01-04-2023 To
S.No. For the_ Period : 31.03.2023 31-03-2024

1 Defined benefit obligation 5.21 5.43
2 Fair value of plan assets - -
3 Funded status - Deficit/ (Surplus) 5.21 5.43
4 |Actuarial (Gains) and Losses - on Obligations - (2.09)
5  |Actuarial Gains and (Losses) - on Plan Assets - -
6 |Net defined benefit - (Liability)/ Asset (5.21) (5.43)

Table 7: Net Periodic benefit cost recognized in the Profit and Loss

’ 01-04-2022 To 01-04-2023 To
S.No. For the Period 31-03.2073 31-03-2024
1 Current Service Cost 5.21 1.47
2 Interest Expense - Obligation - 0.36
3 Interest (Income) - Plan Assets - -
4 Past Service Cost - 0.48
5 Actuarial (Gains) and Losses - on Obligations - (2.09)
6 Actuarial Gains and (Losses) - on Plan Assets - =
7 |Net Periodic benefit cost recognized in the P& L 5.21 0.22
Table 8: Balance Sheet Rernnrilliatinn
) e 01,04.2022 Th N100707% TH
5.Nu. For the ‘Perlod 31-03-2023 31-03-2024
1 Net defined benefit (liability) asset at beginning of period - (5.21)
2 Expense In the P& L (5.21) (0.22)
3 |Employer's Total Contribution - -
4  |Net transfer - -
5 |Net defined benefit (liability) asset as at end of period (5.21) (5.43)
Table 9 : Expected Future Cashflows & Discontinuance Liability
1 Expected employer contributions Next year 1.47 l
i Expected Benefit
S.No _Year Ending March"31, Payment (in Rs.)
1 2025 1.49
2 2026 1.17
3 2027 0.92
4 0.76
5 0.56
6 1.43
7 -~ 0.57
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PNC Khajuraho Highways Private Limited ,
CIN :U45500DL2017PTC316427
Notes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2024

Table 10: Major Categories of Plan Assets(as a % of total Plan Assets)

y : For the period ending

S.No. Asset Categories 31.03.2023 31.03-2024

1 Government of India Securities 0.00% 0.00%

2 State Government Securities 0.00% 0.00%

3 High Quality Corporate Bonds 0.00% 0.00%

4 Equity shares of listed companies 0.00% 0.00%

5 Property 0.00% 0.00%

6 Special Deposit Scheme 0.00% 0.00%

7  |Funds managed by Insurer 0.00% 0.00%

8 Others (to specify) 0.00% 0.00%

9 Total 0.00% 0.00%

Table 11: Sensitivity of Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) to key assumptions

The financial results are sensitive to the actuarial assumptions. The changes to the Defined Benefit Obligations for
increase and decrease from assumed salary escalation, withdrawal and discount rates are given below:

S.No. Scenario DBO Variation
1 Under Base Scenario 5.43 0.00%
2 |Salary Increase Rate - Plus 100 Basis Points 5.58 2.65%
3 Salary Increase Rate - Minus 100 Basis Points 5.30 -2.52%
4 Withdrawal Rate - Plus 100 Basls Poinls 5.45 0.26%
5 Withdrawal Rate - Minus 100 Basis Points 542 -0 7R%
6 Discount Rate - Plus 100 Basis Points 5.28 -2.90%
7  [Discount Rate - Mlnus 100 Basis Poinlg =, 30C/ 5.60 3.11%

&, W% 9




PNC Khajuraho Highways Private Limited
" CIN :U45500DL2017PTC316427
Notes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2024

Note 37 : Ratios

The following are analytical ratios for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

Year ended :
Sr. : Explanation regarding
ticul ¢ =
No. Partjeu ey March 31, | March 31, | Variances variance if > 25%
2024 2023 (%)
1 |Current Ratio (tiltnfs) o 116 057 s100 Due to rea.li?ation of
(Current assets divided by current liablities ) ] annuities.
2 |Debt-Equity Ratio (times)
(Long-term borrowings, Short-term borrowings and current maturities of
long term borrowin.gs excluding u.nsecured borrowing t?ken ar'1d. outstanding 352 3.95 (10.77) NA.
from ultimate holding company(i.e. PNC Infratech Limited) divided by total
equity including unsecured loan taken from ultimate holding company
3 [Debt Service Coverage Ratio (times)
(Profit before lnter.est, jra).( and Exceptional item divided b.y Interest 0.58 0.62 (7.47) NA.
Expenses together with principal repayment of Long-term borrowings)
4 |Return on Equity Ratio (%)
(Profit after Tax divided by Total Equity, total equity also includes unsecured 185 4.72 (60.84) Due to higher income tax for
loan taken from ultimate holding company i.e. from PNC Infrateech Limited) L the year.
5 |Inventory Turnover Ratio (times)
{Cost of Goods sold divided by Average inventory) NA NA NA NA
Cost of Goods sold = Cost of materials consumed + Contract Paid +
Construction expenses
6 [Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio (times) ,
(Revenue from operation divided by Average Trade Recenvable including 0.13 0.12 4.39 NA
service concessioon receivable)
oA R UL Payat.)lfe SETGVEEatD (tm!es) 0.62 0.26 >100(|Due to increase in purchases.
{Purchase divided by Average Creditor)
8 [Net Capital Turnover Ratio (times)
(Revenue from operation divided by working capital(working capital refers 6.20 -ve NA N.A.
to net current assets arrived after reducing current liabilities )
i io (¥ Due to increase in operatin
9 |Net F.'I'Oflt Ratio (/6) . 3.58 8.51 (57.88) p g
(Profit after Tax divided by Revenue from operation) expenses.
10 |Return on Capital Employed (%)
{EBITDA divided by Capital employed (capital employed arived after 9.10 9.07 0.25 NA
reducing current liabilities)
11 |Return on investment (%) Due to higher current
0.39 0.92 57.22 . S
(Profit after tax/Total Assets) ( ) income tax liability

The accompanying notes an form integral part of the these financial statements
In terms of our report of even date attached

For RMA & Associates LLp Q\%
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